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From: Joney Ramirez <Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk>  
Sent: 15 April 2025 09:30 
To: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk>; Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin <Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation  
 
Official 
 
Hi Mandip, 
 
I'm checking with my business support team as they are the only ones who can check and update fees in 
our system. Once this is actioned I'll be able to issue the validation letter, backdated to when the fee was 
received. I'll keep you updated. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Joney 
 
 

 
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 8:04 AM 
To: Joney Ramirez; Julie Papouskova 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation  
 
Official 
 
Good morning, Joney 
  
Can you confirm that the application was validated? Can you issue a validation letter? I do not believe that 
we have received one since the additional application fee was paid. 
  
Many thanks 
  
Kind regards, 
  
MANDIP SINGH SAHOTA MRTPI 
MANAGING PARTNER 
  

 
  
T. 020 7636 3961 
DD. 020 3872 4968 
M. 07738 718068 
ms@ntaplanning.co.uk 
www.ntaplanning.co.uk 

mailto:ms@ntaplanning.co.uk
http://www.ntaplanning.co.uk/
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NTA PLANNING LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales. 
Registered number OC438813. 
Registered office: 46 James Street, London W1U 1EZ 
  
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: 07 April 2025 11:12 
To: Joney Ramirez <Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk>; Julie Papouskova 
<jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin <Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Good morning, Joney, 
  
I confirm that the top-up fee has been paid this morning. 
  
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
Sent: 04 April 2025 10:23 
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
  
Good morning Mandip, 
  
You can pay via the following link, please include reference 2025/0074 so our admin team can match the 
payment to this application. 
  
Make a pre-application advice or planning payment - Wandsworth Borough Council 
  

mailto:Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk
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
https://wandsworth.gov.uk/make-a-pre-application-advice-or-planning-payment/
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Kind regards, 
  
Joney 
  
  

 
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: Friday, April 04, 2025 7:34 AM 
To: Joney Ramirez; Julie Papouskova 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Good morning, Joney 
  
Can you advise how we go about paying the top-up fee? Is there a link that you can provide? 
  
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
Sent: 03 April 2025 12:48 
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
  
Good afternoon Mandip, 
  
I'm in the process of validating the application however I've noticed that the fee paid corresponds solely to 
a change of use which is incorrect in this case, as operational development in the form of landscaping and 
cycle parking is being proposed. As such, the fee should be based on the site area. 

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
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Would you be so kind to review based on the site area as necessary and pay the correct fee please? 
  
Kind regards 
  
Joney 
  

 
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: Wednesday, April 02, 2025 10:45 AM 
To: Joney Ramirez; Julie Papouskova 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Good morning, Joney, 
  
I confirm that the applicant is agreeable to the description proposed. 
  
I note your other comments, however the applicant would like to proceed. 
  
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
Sent: 02 April 2025 09:52 
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
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The PPG is clear (Paragraph: 046 Reference ID: 14-046-20140306) that the local planning authority should 
be satisfied that the description of development provided by the applicant is accurate before publicising an 
application however this on itself is no reason for invalidation.  
  
You have provided all information for the application to be valid and as such, I'll proceed with consultation 
shortly. The description of development would be: "Use as hostel accommodation (Sui generis) with 
associated landscaping and cycle parking". Can you confirm you agree to this description? 
  
However I must emphasise that at this stage, the Council is not satisfied that the description of 
development is accurate as it is not clear if the assessment will need to be made on the basis of a change of 
use and operational development or solely for operational development. This could significantly delay the 
assessment of the application, result in abortive work and repeated consultation.  
  
In our view, the appropriate approach would have been to wait until the current appeal is determined to a 
have a definite stance regarding the use of the site however, it is down to you and the applicant to decide 
your best way forward. You will receive the validation letter via email this week. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Joney 
  

 
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: Tuesday, April 01, 2025 3:59 PM 
To: Joney Ramirez; Julie Papouskova 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Hi Joney, 
  
There are external alterations involving provision of cycle stands. 
  
Given that the parties are at a disagreement regarding the change of use position, and that no root 
permission can be sourced by either party, we remain of the view that the description should simply be for 
the ‘use as hostel accommodation, with associated landscaping’. 
  
I think that if this description cannot be agreed, and if we have reached an impasse, then it may best to 
proceed with appeal against non-validation. 
  
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
Sent: 28 March 2025 15:52 
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
  
Our understanding is that there would be no external alterations, could you please clarify? The description 
also misses the proposed landscaping as such this proposed description cannot be agreed. 
  
As mentioned in my email to Julie, we are of the view that it is important the description clearly identifies 
what type of development is being applied for. Is it operational development or change or use? Is it both?  
  
We propose the following description: 
  
      Change of use to Hostel Accommodation (sui generis) with associated landscaping 
  
Can you let me know if the above wording can be agreed?   
  
Kind regards, 
  
Joney  
  

 
From: Mandip Sahota 
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 5:29 PM 
To: Joney Ramirez; Julie Papouskova 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Dear Joney, 
  
Replying for Julie as she is on leave today. 
  
The applicant has suggested the following alternative wording. 

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


NTA PLANNING LLP                                 APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE 

 

MOUNT CLARE CAMPUS, MINSTEAD GARDENS, ROEHAMPTON GATE, SW15 4EE      

  
Internal and external alterations to allow the buildings to be used as Hostel Accommodation (non tourist)  
  
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
Sent: 19 March 2025 10:30 
To: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk>; Siri Thafvelin 
<Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Dear Julie, 
  
Noted regarding the information for reason for invalidation 1. Please note that we would need to receive 
this information by 24/03.  
  
Regarding the description of development, the main issue here is that from the documentation and 
application form submitted with the application, it is not clear what the proposed development is, as set 
out under Section 55 of the TCPA. 
  
I had a look at the applications you quoted in your previous email. All of these clearly identify in their 
application forms and supporting materials that their proposals relate to a change of use.  
  
Your application form only states "use of existing buildings for temporary accommodation with associated 
landscaping". Can the application form be updated so it identifies which type of development you are 
applying for please? I recommend the description to be updated to "Change of use of existing buildings for 
temporary accommodation with associated landscaping". 
  
However, if the argument is that there is no change of use and there is no operational development, then a 
Lawful Development Certificate is the appropriate process. 

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
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I look forward to hearing from you. 
  
Kind regards 
  
Joney 
  

 
From: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 18 March 2025 3:50 PM 
To: Joney Ramirez <Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk>; Siri Thafvelin 
<Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Dear Joney, 
  
With reasons 2. and 3. for invalidation having been addressed, the information required for reason 1. is 
currently being finalised and we are looking to issue this as soon as possible. 
  
In respect of the description of development, we note the following comments from Siri’s email (dated 
12th February): 
  
“However before we finalise the registration of the application and start the consultation, I wanted to 
confirm the description of the proposal. In the section of the application form that sets out the description 
of the proposal, the “proposed development or works including any change of use” is described as: Use of 
existing buildings for temporary accommodation with associated landscaping. 
  
However this does not make it clear what the development comprises in terms of the definition set out in 
section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
Can you please provide additional clarification regarding the nature of the proposed development? 
Based on the submitted documents and familiarity with the site, I suggest the following description, please 
confirm if this is acceptable and we will start the consultation process: Change of use of existing buildings 
from student accommodation and associated uses (sui generis) to temporary accommodation (sui generis) 
with associated landscaping.” 
  
We do not wish to use the suggested amended description of development. Having regard to the Council’s 
online planning register, we note a number of recent and valid applications which refer to the “use of” 
premises: 
  

• 2025/0333 – Use of the roof top unit for Class E(g)(i) office. 
• 2024/3155 – Use of the ground floor unit as a pet day care and grooming centre. 
• 2023/3860 – Use of existing dwellinghouse as a childrens home. 

  
As such, we do not agree with Siri’s comments that our proposed description of development (Use of 
existing buildings for temporary accommodation with associated landscaping) does not make it clear what 
the development comprises in terms of the definition set out in Section 55 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:ms@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk
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As such, we wish for the application to be made valid under the description of development provided upon 
submission (Use of existing buildings for temporary accommodation with associated landscaping). 
  
Kind regards, 
  
JULIE PAPOUSKOVA 
PLANNER 
  

 
  
NTA PLANNING LLP 
TOWN PLANNING CONSULTANTS 
  
T. 020 7636 3961 
DD. 020 3872 4969 
jp@ntaplanning.co.uk 
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2025 2:33 PM 
To: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: Re: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Dear Julie, 
  
Would you be so kind to provide an update on this invalid application? Given the amount of time this has 
been invalid, we would need to receive the outstanding information by 24/03/25.  
  
Kind regards 
  
Joney 
  

 
From: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 27 February 2025 5:30 PM 
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
  
HI Joney, 
  
I can confirm that the amended drawings addressing comment no. 3 (Inaccuracy on plans) have been 
uploaded onto the sharepoint folder. 
  
An amended landscaping plan clearly identifying the existing and the proposed landscape elements has 
also been uploaded onto the folder, to address comment no. 2 (Insufficient detail on plans). 
  
We will come back to you on the outstanding matters in due course. 
  
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
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 5:13 PM 
To: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: Re: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Dear Julie, 
  
Unfortunately, we are not able to access WeTransfer links. Would you be so kind to upload the documents 
in the following sharepoint folder? 
  

Mount Clare 
  
Many thanks 
  

mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
http://www.ntaplanning.co.uk/
mailto:Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
https://richmondandwandsworth-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/joney_ramirez_richmondandwandsworth_gov_uk/EnVKzcakA45NsD60-SaeWnoB06X1puZ_PgJlNfMOtsxjmw?email=jp%40ntaplanning.co.uk&e=hjtxUc
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Joney  
  

 
From: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 27 February 2025 4:30 PM 
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
  
Thank you for reviewing the information submitted and coming back to us with the below comments. 
  
In respect of no. 3 (Inaccuracy on plans)  - these have been reviewed and amended accordingly. We submit 
these using the following WeTransfer link: https://we.tl/t-zX2N5DXcMF 
  
We will come back to you on the remaining outstanding points in due course. 
  
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
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 4:52 PM 
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
https://we.tl/t-zX2N5DXcMF
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
  
Following Siri’s email, I have reviewed the information submitted with the application and as it stands, the 
application is currently invalid for the following reasons: 
  

1. Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) calculations: an Ecological Report has been submitted however BNG 
calculations based on the statutory biodiversity metric tool have not been provided. It is put 
forward that the development is exempt from BNG as it is de minimis but evidence to support this 
has not been submitted. Noting that the proposals include landscaping, BNG calculations are 
required for this major application. 

2. Insufficient detail on plans: the submitted Landscape Plan (ref.0101 Rev. P02) does not provide 
clear difference between the existing and the proposed landscape elements. 

3. Inaccuracy on plans: the submitted ‘Existing first floor plan’ for each of the residences do not show 
a window on the bottom right corner, which is shown on the proposed plans. Can this plan be 
reviewed to ensure this window on each block, if existing, is shown on the plans? 

  
In addition to the invalidation reasons above, a review of the Planning Statement shows that the proposal 
relates to the use of Picasso House, Blocks A -E and the Bungalow for temporary accommodation. Can we 
agree to the updated description of development as recommended by Siri on her email of 12/02/25? 
  
There also appears to be a lack of justification regarding the loss of student accommodation as required by 
Policy LP28(b) as no evidence has been provided that existing student accommodation “no longer caters for 
current or future needs”. Can this evidence be provided for the adequate assessment of the application? 
  
Finally, we note that the current LDC appeal has been supported by a noise professional opinion note. 
Would you be submitting a Noise report or additional note with this current application? 
  
I look forward to hearing from you. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Joney 
  
Joney Ramirez MRTPI 
Principal Planning Officer | Strategic Development Team 
London Borough of Wandsworth 
Tel. No: (020) 8871 8284 
planning@wandsworth.gov.uk 
www.wandsworth.gov.uk 
  
  
From: Siri Thafvelin <Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk> 
Sent: 12 February 2025 15:33 
To: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk>; Joney Ramirez 
<Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 

mailto:planning@wandsworth.gov.uk
http://www.wandsworth.gov.uk/
mailto:Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:ms@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:Joney.Ramirez@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk
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Hi Julie, 
  
Apologies again for the delay. The application was reallocated to a new starter who joined us at the 
beginning of the week (copied in). We wanted the letters to go out in her name, as she will otherwise not 
receive the consultation responses, any neighbour representations, etc. but needed her to be fully set up 
on the system before that could happen. 
  
However before we finalise the registration of the application and start the consultation, I wanted to 
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
with associated landscaping. 
  
I hope this is clear but do not hesitate to contact me or Joney if you have any questions. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Siri Thafvelin 
Principal Planning Officer | Strategic Development Team 
Serving Richmond and Wandsworth Councils 
Tel. No: (020) 8871 6899 
planning@wandsworth.gov.uk 
www.wandsworth.gov.uk 
  
  
From: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 12 February 2025 13:34 
To: Siri Thafvelin <Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk>; Planning Applications 
<Wandsworthplanningapplications@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Good Afternoon Siri, 
  
It has now been a month since planning application ref. PP-13614565 was received. 
  
Please provide an update at the earliest opportunity, as we are being left with no choice but to pursue 
proceedings to appeal against non-validation. 
  
Kind regards, 

mailto:planning@wandsworth.gov.uk
http://www.wandsworth.gov.uk/
mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
mailto:Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:Wandsworthplanningapplications@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 4, 2025 10:23 AM 
To: Julie Papouskova <jp@ntaplanning.co.uk>; Planning Applications 
<Wandsworthplanningapplications@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Cc: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Official 
  
Hi Julie, 
  
Thank you for your emails and apologies for the delay in response. We will finish reviewing the submitted 
suite of documents and let you know if anything more is needed to complete the registration of the 
application. 
  
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
Sent: 04 February 2025 09:41 
To: Planning Applications <Wandsworthplanningapplications@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Cc: Siri Thafvelin <Siri.Thafvelin@RichmondandWandsworth.gov.uk>; Mandip Sahota 

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
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<ms@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
  
Good Morning, 
  
Can you please provide an update on the validation of planning application ref. PP-13614565? 
  
The application was received on the 11th of January, and we are yet to have a response from you, despite 
numerous requests for an update. 
  
As previously mentioned, we will begin proceedings to appeal against non-validation, should we not hear 
from you this week. 
  
We would appreciate if you could please provide an update as soon as possible. 
  
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
  
From: Julie Papouskova 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 11:55 AM 
To: planning@wandsworth.gov.uk 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
Importance: High 
  
Good Afternoon, 
  
We are yet to receive a response from you in regard to validation of planning application ref. PP-13614565, 
which was received on the 11th of January. 
  
Should we not hear from you within a week, we will being proceedings to appeal against non-validation. 
  

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
Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2025 11:05 AM 
To: 'planning@wandsworth.gov.uk' <planning@wandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
Importance: High 
  
Good Morning, 
  
Further to my previous email, can you please provide an update on the validation of full planning 
application ref. PP-13614565? 
  
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
Sent: Friday, January 24, 2025 10:09 AM 
To: planning@wandsworth.gov.uk 
Subject: PP-13614565 - Mount Clare Campus - Validation 
Importance: High 
  
Good Morning 
  
Can you please provide an update on the validation of full planning application ref. PP-13614565? 
  
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
  
  
IMPORTANT: 
This email and any of its attachments are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom 
they are addressed. If you have received this message in error you must not print, copy, use or disclose the 
contents to anyone. Please also delete it from your system and inform the sender of the error immediately. 
Emails sent and received by Richmond and Wandsworth Councils are monitored and may be subsequently 
disclosed to authorised third parties, in accordance with relevant legislation. 
  
 
 
 
 

http://www.ntaplanning.co.uk/
mailto:planning@wandsworth.gov.uk
mailto:jp@ntaplanning.co.uk
http://www.ntaplanning.co.uk/
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2. VALIDATION LETTER DATED 23 APRIL 2025 (REF: 2025/0074)    
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3. EMAIL CORRESPONDENCE DATED 8TH AUGUST 2025     
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From: Pedro Rizo <Pedro.Rizo@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk>  
Sent: 08 August 2025 15:49 
To: Mandip Sahota <ms@ntaplanning.co.uk> 
Cc: Janet Ferguson <Janet.Ferguson@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Mount Clare House, Roehampton 
 
Official 
 
Dear Mandip, 
 
Following our online meeting on the 4th August 2025, please find below an update and summary of 
key planning considerations that have been identified at this stage, as part of an initial assessment of 
planning application 2025/0074. The issues raised below can hopefully assist in providing more 
context on the planning issues that have been identified as part of our assessment. You will recall 
that when we met, we suggested three options to progress the current application and to resolve our 
concerns. The options are set out below followed by the key issues that have been identified as part 
of the consideration of the scheme: 
 

a) Amend the description of the application to reflect the dismissed appeal decision in respect 
to Certificate of Lawfulness Ref. 2024/2089, which is relevant to the application as it relates 
to the existing use of the site, to the following wording: “Change of use of existing buildings 
from mixed use comprising office, student accommodation and storage to hostel for 
temporary accommodation to accommodate 264 rooms with common facilities, alongside 
the replacement of existing bungalow building and provision of ancillary refuse/cycle stores, 
landscaping, play space and associated works”. As advised, amending the description in this 
way would require a statutory 21-day re-consultation and revisions to the submitted 
documents accompanying the application would also be required (in line with the comments 
that are being relayed below). As also mentioned during our meeting, the revision of the 
documents and plans would not rule out a refusal, as the revised documents would need to 
be re-assessed to review whether the revisions would resolve the considerable number of 
issues that have been picked up at this stage. 

 
b) Withdraw the application in its current form and re-consider a re-submission that fully 

addresses the concerns raised (as summarised below). This option could avoid a potential 
refusal and could involve embarking on pre-application discussions that ensure that the 
scheme evolves in a way that all points of concern have been resolved. 

 
c) Keep the application in its current form. However, please note that the application will have 

to be assessed and determined as a priority and it is unlikely to be successful as it stands. The 
planning assessment would also be based on the change of use position, in line with the 
appeal decision linked to Certificate of Lawfulness Ref. 2024/2025. 

 
Following an initial assessment of the application, the following key issues have been picked up for 
your consideration: 
 

1. Principle of Development: 
The assessment of the application should be consistent with appeal decision dated 11th July 2025 and 
therefore it is the Council’s view that the proposal should be assessed as a change of use from mixed 
student accommodation comprising storage and office floorspace to hostel temporary 
accommodation. The loss of student accommodation is therefore a key planning consideration and 
therefore reviewed against policy LP28 of the Local Plan, which states how any loss will only be 
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permitted when the loss of student accommodation would be solely at ground floor level and would 
be replaced with active ground floor uses, and the proposed uses pass the sequential test for main 
town centre uses in accordance with policy LP43 of the Local Plan. The application documents do not 
provide evidence that the site is no longer needed for student accommodation and therefore 
conflicts with policy LP28. Given that policy H15 of the London Plan 2021 also acknowledges a 
demand for student accommodation and in the absence of justification for any loss of student 
accommodation, the proposed change of use would be in principle resisted. This would be consistent 
with reasons for refusal under application 2024/0183 (September 2024). 
 
In addition, policy LP31 of the Local Plan requires development proposals for ‘Specialist Housing and 
Vulnerable People’ to demonstrate that the accommodation meets an identified need, having regard 
to the evidence set out in the Council’s most up to date Local Housing Needs Assessment. 
Additionally, the policy seeks for high quality accommodation that meets best practice guidance in 
sites that have good access to levels of public transport and shops, services and leisure facilities that 
meet the needs of intended occupiers. In this instance, concerns are raised over how the proposed 
accommodation would not have access to good levels of public transport (PTAL 1b) and to shops, 
services and leisure facilities intended to future occupiers.  
 
Furthermore, additional details with respect to the type of temporary accommodation are required, 
to establish the time-period involved for the intended temporary accommodation (how long it is 
expected that each resident would stay) and how the operation of the site would be dealt with 
accordingly. Further clarifications in respect to the intended temporary use and the operational 
strategy of this use would assist in any justification for any loss of student accommodation (please 
also see Section 5 below).  
 
Given the above initial concerns with regards to land use, the application would appear contrary to 
policy LP28 of the Local Plan, which requires the proposal to demonstrate that the site no longer 
caters for the future student needs. Moreover, details should be provided to justify how the 
proposed specialist temporary housing would not be fully compliant with policy LP31 of the Local 
Plan, with regards to identified need and provision of high-quality accommodation with acceptable 
links to public transport, services, and shops to meet the needs of future occupiers. The loss of 
student accommodation should therefore be justified, and any proposal should also be consistent 
with the aspirations set out under the Site Allocation in the Local Plan (R02), which seeks for a mixed-
use residential-led development.  
 

2. Quality of Accommodation:  
The proposed development would accommodate 264 rooms with common facilities. Although the 
Technical Housing Standards – Nationally Described Space Standards (2015) would not be applicable 
for the proposed temporary accommodation (as this does not include self-contained permanent 
dwellings) and there are no minimum spatial standards for the temporary habitable rooms, the 
London Plan seeks for appropriately sized and functional habitable floorspace for any form of 
residential development. Notwithstanding the fact that the Technical Housing Standards – Nationally 
Described Space Standards (2015) and the minimum floor areas required by policy 3.5 of the London 
Plan 2021 would not be applicable, the development would involve rooms that would be occupied by 
unrelated individuals with shared facilities and the proposal should therefore be compliant with the 
Wandsworth Minimum Amenities Standards for Houses in Multiple Occupation.  
 
The typical layout for Blocks A - E have been reviewed. Whilst paragraph 4.8 of the Planning 
Statement states that the proposed units within these blocks range between 12.00 sqm and 20.00 
sqm, from my analysis, these rooms would range between 6.00 sqm and 10.00 sqm as shown in the 
proposed floor plans and would fail to meet the Wandsworth HMO standards, which set a minimum 



NTA PLANNING LLP                                 APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE 

 

MOUNT CLARE CAMPUS, MINSTEAD GARDENS, ROEHAMPTON GATE, SW15 4EE      

of 6.5 sqm for single occupiers and 10.20 sqm – 15.00 sqm for two occupiers, where a separate living 
room is provided which is not a kitchen or a kitchen/dining room. These blocks would not provide 
additional living rooms and would not accommodate communal kitchen dining areas (minimum 
requirement of 11.00 sqm for five people and 1.00 additional sqm for each additional person). There 
are no living communal areas within these blocks and given that the proposed small single bedrooms 
(comprising 6.00 sqm) would have no access to ensuite bathrooms and the fact that none of the 
proposed rooms would appear to have shower facilities (as ensuites would be 1.00 sqm in floor 
area), the proposed accommodation and layout within Blocks A – E cannot be supported.  
 
Whilst Picasso House would accommodate two-bed, three-bed, four-bed and six-bed cluster rooms 
with kitchen/dining areas with a slightly more generous size (ranging between 9.00 sqm for single 
rooms and 21.00 sqm for double rooms with access to WC and kitchen dining areas), the proposed 
kitchen and dining areas would fail to meet the Wandsworth HMO amenity standards in that the 
kitchen/dining areas would fall short of the 11.00 sqm requirement per five occupants with 
additional sqm per additional occupier. For example, the six bed clusters would accommodate a 
maximum of 10 people and the proposed kitchen/dining area would only contain 13.00 sqm in floor 
area. Moreover, a three-bed cluster within the first floor would have a capacity to accommodate five 
people and the proposed kitchen/dining area would only contain 9.00 sqm. Although additional 
communal kitchen floorspace alongside a common room is provided at ground floor, the proposed 
communal kitchen would contain 52.00 sqm and would provide a very limited collective kitchen area, 
considering that this block would have the capacity to accommodate approximately 50 people. As 
observed, some single bedrooms (as annotated in the floor plans) exceed 12.00 sqm in floor area and 
could therefore have the capacity to accommodate two persons. As such, it is likely that Picasso 
House would have capacity to even accommodate more people.  
 
Similar concerns with regards to quality of living environment are raised with regards to substandard 
accommodation are noted on the proposed bungalow building, as the proposed single bedrooms 
within this block would have no access to an ensuite bathroom. 
 
These concerns should therefore be addressed with regards to the quality of the internal amenity 
space and the overall quality of the proposed habitable room with regards to size, design and layout. 
Given the nature of the proposed accommodation and the very limited size of each room, the 
provision of an acceptable level of internal amenity space with a clearer perception between the 
communal areas and the more private spaces within the rooms is a key design consideration.  
 
Of relevance are also the requirements for wheelchair accessible rooms and inclusive design, policy 
D7 of the London Plan (2021) seeks for at least 10% of dwellings to meet Building regulations 
requirement M4 (3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’ for all dwellings. Whilst this policy generally limits 
the threshold to new build dwellings, concerns should be noted that only one single room (9.00 sqm 
in floor area) at ground floor within Picasso House is labelled as accessible under the revised 
floorplan, as per the updated floor plan. This room is very constrained in floor area and would not 
have access to ensuite WC and therefore the design provisions for disabled persons require further 
review. Details with regards to accessible wheelchair rooms are required, including guidelines of how 
these rooms would be integrated to communal amenity spaces and disabled parking.  
 

3. Transport and Servicing: 
The proposed uplift of cycle parking provision to 106 cycle parking spaces stated in the submitted 
Planning and Heritage Statement (paragraph 6.83) and Transport Statement (paragraph 4.4.3) is 
welcomed. Please note that the submitted application form states that a total of 86 cycle parking 
spaces are proposed, therefore there is conflicting information in the submission. The submitted 
Transport Statement should also be reviewed to provide a comprehensive Transport Assessment by 
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reason of the number of temporary rooms and should therefore provide further details on potential 
transport impacts of the development.  
 
The Transport Team has requested additional information about the intended occupiers to assess the 
trip generation analysis. The Transport Officer has also raised concerns over the lack of an on-street 
vehicular parking stress survey. This information is needed to confirm whether the application is 
compliant with the criteria set out in paragraph 114 of the NNPA. As advised, it is difficult to estimate 
the number of trips likely to be generated if the type of occupier is not known and there are no 
similar sites on TRICS. Furthermore, an on-street vehicular parking stress survey to support the 
application would be required, considering that future occupiers could have different needs and 
travel patterns.  
 
The application also mentions that it is estimated that the development would generate 5 jobs within 
the site (end use). However, details to justify the number of employees should be included in any 
forthcoming temporary accommodation management strategy of the site, as specifications in 
connection to the operation, security and maintenance of the temporary accommodation should be 
assessed further. Any increase in employees would have an effect on trip generation and parking.  
 
Whilst the proposed car-free development approach could be acceptable, the application should also 
demonstrate that the proposed level of parking is suitable in this location and would respond to the 
requirements of the operation of the site. As advised, this could be done through a parking stress 
survey completed in accordance with the Lambeth Methodology, which appears to be missing, as 
also advised by the Transport Team.  
 
I should add that no objections in principle are raised with regards to servicing and refuse collection, 
as the current arrangement at Picasso House would be basically replicated. However, consideration 
on arrangements for waste storage, particularly within Blocks A – E would be required. Details in 
connection to recycling appear to be also missing, but these details could be dealt with via condition.  
 

4. Landscaping: 
The submitted Design and Access Statement provides very limited information in connection to the 
proposed landscaping strategy. Whilst some details with regards to cycle parking, street furniture, 
play equipment are included within the submitted Landscape Plan (Drawing No. 0101), additional 
information should be provided to activate the external amenity areas around the buildings and 
introduce planting and seating edges that create social spaces around the site, alongside a lighting 
strategy. The application should be seen as an opportunity to introduce good quality soft and 
permeable landscaping features, to support new habitat and achieve an acceptable score of urban 
greening, in compliance with policy G5 of the London Plan 2021. Whilst the target is mostly 
applicable to new build development where landscaping is proposed, it is noted that new 
landscaping features have been included as a key material form of development, as per the 
description of the development and that the existing dilapidated condition of the bungalow building 
would require replacement with a new-build structure.  
 

5. Employment Strategy and Operational Statement: 
The submitted documents mention that the proposed temporary use would require five direct 
operational jobs. Justification on this number is required, to understand how the temporary 
accommodation would operate in terms of management and maintenance, including communal 
areas. Specifications on entry systems, anti-social behaviour measures and CCTV should also be 
considered as part of this information. 
 

6. Fire Safety: 
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Policy D12 of the London Plan 2021 requires the submission of a Fire Strategy for all major forms of 
development, which should incorporate measures to minimise risks of fire. Whilst Section C of the 
submitted Planning Statement mentions the requirements of policy D12, no third-party and 
independent report has been submitted, which should be assessed to review the fire safety systems, 
fire prevention measures, and accessibility for firefighting. Although these details could be dealt with 
via a condition, these should be required as part of a management strategy for the temporary 
accommodation, to ensure high standard of fire safety in accordance with policy D12 of the London 
Plan 2021.  
 

7. Energy and Sustainability: 
The application is a major application and therefore should be consistent with policy SI 2 of the 
London Plan (2021) that requires a detailed energy strategy to demonstrate how the zero-carbon 
target will be met within the framework of the development. Although the submitted Planning 
Statement addresses this requirement and notes that the proposal would only seek to use existing 
buildings for temporary accommodation, the proposed retrofitting of the building blocks alongside 
the replacement of the dilapidated bungalow building would involve material forms of development 
that would go beyond retention of existing structures, as stated in the Planning Statement. The 
development should therefore set out CO2 reduction targets for regulation emissions and any 
shortfall should be secured by a financial contribution. 
 
Additionally, the energy strategy should address the condition of the fabric of the existing buildings 
to establish if the existing ventilation and lighting systems require adaptation/modification, due to 
the nature of the development. Furthermore, details with regards to renewable energy supply, such 
as the installation of photovoltaic modules to deliver carbon savings should be explored, to deliver a 
better performance of the buildings.  
 
I hope the above comments are helpful to move the application forward in case you want to proceed 
with ‘option 1’ mentioned above, namely, to update the description of the development. In that 
case, the following updated documents would be expected to address the points raised in this email: 
 

- Amended Planning & Heritage Statement; 
- Amended Design and Access Statement that incorporates revised drawings; 
- Amended floor plans to resolve issues with regards to quality of accommodation and re-

assess quality of internal communal spaces; 
- Proposed Elevations for the bungalow building; 
- Amended Transport Assessment that considers comments given by the Transport Team to 

supersede submitted Transport Statement; 
- Amended Landscape Plan; 
- Submission of Fire Strategy; 
- Submission of Employment Strategy and Temporary Accommodation Management Plan 

detailing number of proposed jobs and the reasons with specifications on how the temporary 
accommodation would operate. These details should correlate with the Transport 
Statement, which requires further details on trip generation; and,  

- Submission of Energy Strategy.  
 
Based on the above information being submitted, a formal 21-days statutory re-consultation exercise 
would be carried out alongside a further assessment of the acceptability of the proposed 
development as amended, particularly with regards to land use, quality of temporary residential 
accommodation, transport and sustainability. I would be grateful if you can confirm your intended 
way forward within the next seven days (15th August 2025) to understand how the application is to 
be progressed. In case no revisions are received within an acceptable timeframe and the application 
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is not withdrawn, it is intended to complete the assessment and determine the proposals as it stands 
on its own merits.  
 
Regards, 
 
Pedro Rizo 
Principal Planning Officer | Strategic Development Team 
London Borough of Wandsworth 
planning@wandsworth.gov.uk 
www.wandsworth.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:planning@wandsworth.gov.uk
http://www.wandsworth.gov.uk/
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4. EMAIL CORRESPONDENCE DATED 20TH AUGUST 2025     
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From: Mandip Sahota  
Sent: 20 August 2025 16:16 
To: Pedro Rizo <Pedro.Rizo@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Cc: Janet Ferguson <Janet.Ferguson@richmondandwandsworth.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Mount Clare House, Roehampton 
 
Dear Pedro, 
 
Thank you for your detailed email of 8th August and the time taken to set out the Council’s initial 
assessment. Having now reviewed this alongside our recent meeting, I would like to respond on 
behalf of our client. 
 
It is disappointing that my previous queries remain unanswered, specifically whether you have 
consulted with your housing colleagues on the matter of need/hostel standards, and whether the 
letter from Spring4 (which directly addresses student demand) has been acknowledged and 
considered in your assessment. These are not peripheral points. they go to the heart of the Council’s 
policy concerns and it is difficult to understand how a balanced conclusion can be reached without 
them being properly addressed. 
 
Turning to the key issues: 
 
1. Principle of Development / Loss of Student Accommodation 
We fundamentally disagree that the loss of student accommodation should be resisted in this case. 
The evidence clearly shows that the site is unattractive and unviable in its current form, with no 
realistic prospect of future student demand. This is corroborated by the Spring4 letter and by 
Roehampton University’s own position. To ignore this evidence risks misapplying Policy LP28 and 
London Plan Policy H15. 
 
Conversely, there is demonstrable need for temporary accommodation, as identified in the Council’s 
own Housing Needs Assessment and wider London-wide evidence. The proposed use aligns with 
Policy LP31, which provides flexibility for specialist housing to meet acute local needs. The low PTAL 
rating is acknowledged, but in the context of temporary, managed accommodation, and the matters 
that were discussed at length at the inquiry in regard to transport connections, local amenities etc, 
this should not be determinative. 
 
2. Quality of Accommodation 
The application of HMO standards is, with respect, misplaced. The scheme is not a conventional HMO 
but a managed, staffed facility with communal kitchens, lounges and operational oversight. The 
London Plan NDSS does not apply, and the relevant test is whether the accommodation provides a 
safe and functional environment for short-term occupiers. The hostel rooms, served with en-suites 
and kitchenettes is how modern hostels are being designed, with a conscious move away from 
communal bathrooms etc, to provide improve quality of life and dignity to its residents, albeit 
temporary accommodation. We can point to numerous examples of approved schemes that have 
been designed on this basis. On that basis, we maintain that the layout and provision is appropriate. 
Accessibility can be improved at ground floor level if required, but the rigid application of standards 
designed for permanent dwellings is not reasonable in this context. 
 
3. Transport and Parking 
Most of the points raised have already been addressed in the submitted Transport Statement, 
including a parking survey and justification for levels of car and cycle provision. Where minor 
inconsistencies exist (e.g. the application form), these are clerical errors which can be rectified easily. 
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Velocity has prepared further trip generation analysis (which again was discussed at length during 
the recent inquiry) which can be supplied (but the Council will already have a copy), and the car-free 
nature of the scheme is wholly consistent with London Plan objectives. 
 
4. Landscaping 
This is a matter of detail which could readily be conditioned, but in principle we are content to 
enhance the landscaping strategy further. 
 
5. Employment / Operational Strategy 
A robust operational management plan has already been provided within the Planning Statement, 
and can be expanded further if required. The proposed staffing levels are appropriate to the nature 
of the use, and issues such as CCTV, access control and ASB management can be clarified through 
conditions if necessary. 
 
6. Fire Safety 
We agree that a fire strategy can be secured by condition. 
 
7. Energy and Sustainability 
We recognise that more detail on energy/sustainability is sought, but equally, as you acknowledge, 
the Planning Statement addresses this requirement and notes that the proposal would only seek to 
use existing buildings for temporary accommodation. The bungalow would be repaired as part of this 
approach. We are confident the site can achieve the necessary carbon reduction targets through 
retrofitting and renewable technologies without undue difficulty, and a condition could secure these 
details appropriately.  
 
 
Finally, with regard to the suggestion of amending the description of the current application to 
reflect the dismissed appeal decision, the applicant disagrees that this is necessary. Whilst the 
Inspector noted other uses on site, he did not conclude that these were in any way the lawful uses. 
Furthermore, this is subject to challenge on the basis that the Inspector misunderstood the law, 
unlawful mixed use cannot extinguish extant lawful permission. His reasoning was inadequate and 
failed to assess materiality properly. Furthermore, in comparing student hostel use with temporary 
accommodation, the Inspector relied on irrelevant/immaterial factors. He compared the proposal 
against how the site was used in practice, rather than against the permitted use.  
 
 
In summary, while we acknowledge certain technical points can be further supplemented, we are 
concerned at the way in which key policy considerations are being interpreted, particularly around 
the principle of use and the application of space standards. These appear to overlook the specific 
circumstances of this proposal and the acute need for temporary accommodation in the borough 
which is a material consideration.  
 
In light of the above, our client has instructed us to proceed with an appeal forthwith on the grounds 
of non-determination. We do so reluctantly, but feel that the current approach being taken by the 
LPA leaves no realistic alternative. 
 
I trust this clarifies the applicants position, but should you or your colleagues wish to discuss any of 
these points further, we remain willing to engage constructively. 
 
 
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
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5. PINS DECISION NOTICE 3358768       
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6. ALTON ESTATE DEEMED PERMISSION (REF: 740/575/3) DATED 13 AUGUST 1952 
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7. LEGAL CHALLENGE REF AC-2025-LON-002743 
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8. LETTER FROM SPRING4 DATED 22 JULY 2025       
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9. LETTER OF REPRESENTATION – UoR DATED 21 AUGUST 2025    
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